* - - - . L]

Earth Negotiations Bulletin

. r * L) L) L] L] L] L] L] . . » * *

A Reporting Sem’lce for Emzronmenr and Development Negotiafions

Vol. 12 No. 53

Published by the International Institute for Sustainable Development

Wednesday, 6 August

HIGHLIGHTS FROM THE MEETINGS OF THE
SUBSIDIARY BODIES OF THE FCCC
5 AUGUST 1997

The Chair of the Ad Hoc Group on the Berlin Mandate
(AGBM) conducted an observer briefing in the morning. The non-
group on quantified emission limitation and reduction objectives
(QELROs) met inthe morning, and the non-group on elements
related to institutions and mechanismsmet in the afternoon. The
Subsidiary Body for Implementation (SBI) concluded itswork ina
morning session and the Subsidiary Body for Scientific and Tech-
nological Advice (SBSTA) concluded itswork in the afternoon.

OBSERVER BRIEFING

AGBM Chair Ralll Estrada-Oyuela (Argentina) convened a
morning briefing for observerson the previousday’ sprogress. The
Chair of the non-group on QEL ROs confirmed that Parties had
decided to definethe framework of an agreement before
proceeding to specify QELROs. Hesaid it was unlikely that
numberswould be discussed thisweek and suggested that an
attempt to do so might embarrass some Parties. The Partieswould,
however, discussdistribution of QELROS. He added that some
Parties continued to opposeflexibility, i.e. trading and joint imple-
mentation. Thetext on thesetopicswould remain in brackets. He
will also prepare atext on measurements and communications.

The Chair of the non-group oninstitutionssaid that discussion
had concentrated on thefinal part of the Protocol, and specifically
addressed the question of linking the Protocol withthe FCCC. A
protocol would beindependent but some del egates expressed
confusion asto how thiscould bereflected in the protocol.

The Chair of the non-group on Article4.1 indicated that itstext
would be altered dueto consultationsthat had taken place sincethe
weekend. The Chair of anewly formed non-group on policiesand
measures reported that some delegates believethat thereisno
reason to have a section on policies and measures given the provi-
sionsinthe FCCC. Otherssupport afull sectionwith elementson
themajor sectorsrelated to energy.

SUBSIDIARY BODY FOR IMPLEMENTATION

Chair Mohamed Ould El Ghaouth (Mauritania) noted that most
decisionsby the contact groupswere outlined in the draft report
(FCCC/SBI/1997/L.2). The Rapporteur commented on the SBI
informal workshop considering updated information from the
national communicationsof Annex | Parties. Henoted that four
presentationswere made by the Secretariat on: national inventories
- actual trends between 1990-1995; methodol ogical issuesarising
from submitted inventories; projectionsto 2000 and 2020; and
policiesand measures and their specific effects. He noted that the
Secretariat plansto have additional information intimefor the next
session of the subsidiary bodies.

The Chair called for consideration of theresultsfrom the
contact groups. Thedraft conclusions on communicationsfrom
Annex | Parties (FCCC/SBI1/1997/CRP.5) were adopted including,
inter alia, that the Secretariat should submit areport at SBI-7 onthe
progressof Annex | Partiesin returning to their 1990 level s of
GHG emissions. The US noted that their acceptance of theterm

“individualy or jointly” inthe draft text did not prejudiceits posi-
tion on other texts being negotiated. The PHILIPPINES called for
theinclusion of aspecific referenceto Article4.2 (b).

The Chair presented draft conclusions on communications
from non-Annex | Parties (FCCC/SBI1/1997/CRP.4). He noted that
the contact group did not find sufficient timeto concludetheissue
and will continueits consideration at the October meeting. On
review of thefinancial mechanism, the Chair presented draft
conclusions (FCCC/SBI1/1997/CRP.3) and stated that the group
will continueto consider theissuein October. A number of dele-
gatesnoted concern that asub-paragraphinthedraft report called
on Partiesto submit their views on thefinancial mechanism by 8
September 1997. The Executive Secretary noted that if the submis-
sionsarelate, delegationswill havelittletimeto consider the
inputs. A compromise date of 15 September was agreed.

Ondivision of labor between SBSTA and SBI, delegates
confirmed the decision to recommend the draft decision for adop-
tion by COP-3. On volume of documentation, del egates approved
the draft decision for adoption by COP-3. Thedraft notes, inter
alia, the efforts of the Convention secretariat to reducethevolume
of documentation (FCCC/SBI/1997/12). On mechanismsfor
consultationswith NGOs, the chair noted that acontact group will
becreated at SBI-7 for consideration of thisitem. The SBI urged all
Partiesto submit their viewson thisitem by no later than 25
August. The Chair presented draft conclusionson arrangementsfor
intergovernmental meetings (FCCC/SBI/1997/L.3; FCCC/SBI/
1997/L .4; FCCC/SBI/1997/CRP.6). On arrangementsfor COP-3,
the del egates accepted the draft conclusionsincluding, inter alia,
that: COP-3 place onthe Agendafor COP-4 the second review of
Article4.2 (a) and (b); and that the paragraph considering an
informal dialogue among Ministersand other Heads of Delega-
tionsbedeleted. On arrangementsfor COP-4, del egates accepted
thedraft conclusionsincluding, inter alia, that COP-4 beheldin
November 1998in Bonn unlessaproposal by aParty to host the
conferenceisreceived before 30 September.

The Chair presented the draft conclusionson the programme
budget for 1998-1999 (FCCC/SBI/1997/CRP.2), and noted that
thiswill beaformal annex. Theannex wasadopted. TheEU saida
fifteen percent increasein the budget over two years showsthe
importancethat the EU attachesto theimplementation and further
development of the Convention. The Executive Secretary
expressed hisappreciation for early closure on thisissue but noted
that five of theten largest contributionsfor theyear havestill not
beenreceived.

Partiesadopted the report of SBI-6 whiletaking into account
theneed toincorporate late decisions. The Chair reminded Parties
that they were duty bound to completetheir work in October as
therewould be no SBI meeting at COP-3.

SUBSIDIARY BODY FOR SCIENTIFIC AND
TECHNOLOGICAL ADVICE

Del egates discussed the remaining i ssues on their agendaand
considered arevised draft report of themeeting (FCCC/SBSTA/
1997/L .4). Del egates adopted the draft conclusionson thedivision
of labor between SBI and SBSTA that were adopted by SBI. The
Chair of the contact group on methodol ogi cal issues presented the

Thisissueof the Earth NegotiationsBulletin <enb@iisd.org> iswritten and edited by PaolaBettelli <paobe@sprynet.com>, Chad Carpenter, LL.M. <chadc@iisd.org>, Peter
Doran <PF.Doran@ul st.ac.uk>, Benjamin Simmons <bls23@columbia.edu> and Steve Wise <swise@igc.apc.org>. The Editor is Pamela Chasek, Ph.D. <pam@iisd.org>
and the Managing Editor is Langston James Kimo Goree VI <kimo@iisd.org>.The sustaining donors of the Bulletin are the Netherlands Ministry for Development
Cooperation and the Government of Canada. General support for the Bulletin during 1997 is provided by the Department for International Development (DI D) of the United
Kingdom, the Ministry of Foreign Affairs of Denmark, the European Community (DG-XI), the German Ministry of Environment, Nature Conservation and Nuclear Safety,
the Ministries of Environment and Foreign Affairs of Austria, the Ministry of Environment of Sweden, the Swiss Federal Office of the Environment, and UNDP. ENB can
be contacted at tel: +1-212-644-0204; fax: +1-212-644-0206. Excerptsfrom the Earth Negotiations Bulletin may be used in other publications only with appropriate citation.
Electronic versions of the ENB are sent to e-mail distribution lists and can be found on the Linkages WWW server at http://www.iisd.ca/linkages.




Vol. 12, No. 53 - 6 August 1997

Page 2

group’ srevised draft conclusions. He noted that

therevised conclusions, inter alia, request the Secretariat to
prepare aprogress report onthework programme on methodolo-
giesand noted that SBSTA-7 will begin consideration of terms of
referencefor expert contributionsand the review of technical docu-
ments. The conclusionsal so contain anindicative budget for the
methodol ogical work programme.

Onmethodol ogical issuesrelated to joint implementation, the
Chair recalled that the US, Canada, Norway and Chinahad held
informal consultations. CHINA reported that the group had not
reached consensus. The Chair proposed that the report of the
meeting state that SBSTA had considered theissueand decided to
defer it for consideration at afuture session. CHINA proposed
deleting the referenceto future consideration. The PHILIPPINES
asked if theissuewould again be considered as a separate agenda
item or together with methodol ogical issues. The USindicated the
need for further discussionsand noted that the clearly divergent
viewsareevidenced by thefact that there are no conclusionson this
matter. Delegates agreed to the Chair’ sproposal.

On national communicationsfrom Annex | countries, del egates
heard apresentation on the SBI workshop on Annex | communica-
tionsand agreed to take note of the methodol ogical issuesoutlined
intheworkshop report. On non-Annex | communications, dele-
gatesagreed to refer to the conclusions adopted by SBI.

Ontransfer of technol ogies, the revised draft conclusions stated
that SBSTA took note of the Secretariat’ sprogressreportsand the
technical report, and supported the Secretariat’ s plansto prepare
reportsontherol e of the private sector and on enabling activities of
governmentsrel ated to technology transfer. Under thedraft conclu-
sions, SBSTA al so encouraged the Secretariat to extend its cooper-
ationwith other organizationswith theaim of, inter alia,
improving the availability of climate relevant data.

Thedraft conclusionsal so state that SBSTA discussed the
subject of intergovernmental technical advisory panels (ITAPS)
and noted that the Secretariat has been requested to prepare areport
onitsexperiencein using theroster of experts. It recalled that the
subject of ITAPs, including their possible establishment, would be
considered by SBSTA-7. SBSTA noted that the Secretariat had
made use of theroster in three expert meetings on technology and
technology transfer issuesand recalled itsrequest to Partiesto
nominate expertsfor theroster. Delegatesrecalled the conclusions
that had been adopted at thelast SBSTA meeting and adopted the
report of the meeting asamended.

NON-GROUP ON QELROS

The non-group on QEL ROS met in themorning and discussed
issues pertaining to coverage and distribution. Coverage discus-
sionswere based on adraft text by the Chair. Thedraft text
proposed an Annex containing alist of six GHGstowhich
QELROswould apply. Thetext included aprovisionfor thereview
of the gaseslisted under the Annex at thefirst session of the COP
after entry into force of theagreement and at regular intervals
thereafter. Criteriafor theaddition of aGHG to thelist werealso
included.

Some del egations objected to theinclusion of certain criteria
such astheavailability of areliablevaluefor therelative global
warming potential of thegasand the availability of acomparable
methodol ogy for estimation and assessing the rel evance of thegas
to climate change. Paragraphs on these topicswere bracketed. The
Chair indicated that most countries agree on acomprehensive
approach according to which QELROs should apply to all GHGs.
He predicted that enlarging the GHG list would not find objection
aslongasitispossibleto measure emissionsand judgetherelative
global warming potential of other gasesin comparisonto CO2.

A number of delegationsrequested that areferenceto the Berlin
Mandate beincludedin thedraft, and noted that acomprehensive
approach had been incorporated inthe FCCC and the Berlin
Mandate. The Chair indicated that he would seek guidancefrom
the AGBM Chair oninclusion of referencesto the Berlin Mandate
and produce anew draft on coverage based onthe discussions.

Therewasageneral exchange of viewson distribution of
QELROsamong Annex | countries. The discussion focused on
whether distribution should be based on adifferentiated approach

or aflat ratetarget. Several delegationsfavored thedifferentiated
approach and underscored the need for different commitments
according to country-specific conditions. These delegationsindi-
cated that the differentiated approach setstheright trend for the
future and pointsto an equitable outcome. Therewasasuggestion
that countries should be ableto negotiate their owntargets.

Other delegationsfavored theflat rate approach and indicated
that targets could be met either individually or jointly. They noted
that time constraintswould makeit difficult to reach agreement on
indicatorsfor differentiation before Kyoto. A delegation
commented on “fairness’ and indicated that someflexibility should
be allowed through emissionstrading and joint implementation.
Anocther delegation indicated that no negotiations could start until
targetsareonthetable.

NON-GROUP ON INSTITUTIONS AND MECHANISMS

The non-group oninstitutions and mechanisms continued
discussionson proposalsfor Final Elements. Virtually every item
discussed remained in brackets at the end of the meeting, with some
delegates privately conceding that certain proposalsarebeing
placed “onice” until some of the encompassing issuesat the
AGBM have been cleared. On therelationship to other agreements,
anumber of Partiesopposed aproposal on derogation onthe
groundsthat it woul d subordinatethe Protocol to other pre-existing
ingtitutions, particularly the World Trade Organization (WTO).
Another group of countrieswanted to establish that nothing inthe
Protocol would prejudicetherightsand obligationsof WTO
members. In aparagraph on aParty’ srightsunder international
law, anumber of Parties argued that the proposal wassimply a
statement of the current legal state of affairs, but otherssaid the
reference should beretained.

Some Parties also argued that a paragraph on provisional appli-
cation of theinstrument was redundant. Others suggested that the
provision could prove useful in hel ping to overcome domestic legal
obstacles. Thefate of aparagraph onratification waslinked to the
outcome of discussionson aproposal laying down restrictions
under the Protocol for regional economic organizations.

Onentry into force, two main positions emerged. Some
supported ratification based on the number of signatories. Others
supported a“weighted entry into force” linking ratificationto the
percentage contributionsto GHG emissions of ratifying countries.
A number of Parties supported aproposal that would ensurethat a
Party’ swithdrawal from the Protocol would not operateto limitits
liability for any claim accruing against it asaresult of economic
injury sustained by developing countries.

IN THE CORRIDORS

Delegates say that the brief discussions of joint implementation
during SBSTA and SBI on Tuesday, point to abiding sensitivities
between Annex | and non-Annex | Partiesover implementation and
potential futurecommitments. Wary of exploring JI before
completing the pil ot phase of activitiesimplementedjointly (AlJ)
between devel oped and devel oping countries, anumber of devel-
oping country delegates say that opening theissuein the subsidiary
bodiescould establishit asanissueinfuture AGBM negotiations, a
result they oppose. They also want to ensure that language on
“returningindividually or jointly” to earlier emissionslevels
appliesonly to Annex | Parties. Devel oped countries supporting Jl
say that it isan appropriate element of future commitmentsthat
should be pursued in current negotiations. AlthoughtextonJl is
being examined in contact groups, thisweek’ sdecisionsare not
expected to resolve differenceson theissue.

THINGS TO LOOK FOR TODAY

Non-Group on Institutions: Thenon-group meet at 10:00 am
inthe Beethoven Room.

Non-Group on Policies and Measures: The non-group will
meet at 10:00 am and at 3:00 pm inthe Maritim Room.

Non-Group on QELROs: Thenon-groupisexpected to meset
at 3:00 pminthe Beethoven Room.



